South Cambridgeshire Hall Cambourne Business Park Cambourne Cambridge CB23 6EA

t: 03450 450 500 f: 01954 713149 www.scambs.gov.uk



South CambridgeshireDistrict Council

1 April 2016

To: Chairman – Councillor Lynda Harford

Vice-Chairman - Councillor David Bard

All Members of the Planning Committee - Councillors Brian Burling,

Anna Bradnam, Pippa Corney, Kevin Cuffley, Sebastian Kindersley, Des O'Brien,

Deborah Roberts, Tim Scott, Ben Shelton and Robert Turner

Quorum: 4

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend the next meeting of **PLANNING COMMITTEE**, which will be held in the **COUNCIL CHAMBER**, **FIRST FLOOR** at South Cambridgeshire Hall on **WEDNESDAY**, 6 **APRIL 2016** at **10.00** a.m.

Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution *in advance of* the meeting. It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started. Council Standing Order 4.3 refers.

Yours faithfully JEAN HUNTER Chief Executive

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to its agendas and minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you.

AGENDA SUPPLEMENT				
4.	S/1969/15/OL - Linton, (Horseheath Road) - Update	PAGES 1 - 4		
	S/1969/15/OL - Linton, (Horseheath Road)			
12.	Pre-application and Technical Briefing Protocol – Replacement report	5 - 16		
13.	Member Training and Development, and Technical Briefings – Replacement report	17 - 22		

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The law allows Councils to consider a limited range of issues in private session without members of the Press and public being present. Typically, such issues relate to personal details, financial and business affairs, legal privilege and so on. In every case, the public interest in excluding the Press and Public from the meeting room must outweigh

the public interest in having the information disclosed to them. The following statement will be proposed, seconded and voted upon.

"I propose that the Press and public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following item number(s) in accordance with Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that, if present, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act."

If exempt (confidential) information has been provided as part of the agenda, the Press and public will not be able to view it. There will be an explanation on the website however as to why the information is exempt.

Notes

- (1) Some development control matters in this Agenda where the periods of consultation and representation may not have quite expired are reported to Committee to save time in the decision making process. Decisions on these applications will only be made at the end of the consultation periods after taking into account all material representations made within the full consultation period. The final decisions may be delegated to the Corporate Manager (Planning and Sustainable Communities).
- (2) The Council considers every planning application on its merits and in the context of national, regional and local planning policy. As part of the Council's customer service standards, Councillors and officers aim to put customers first, deliver outstanding service and provide easy access to services and information. At all times, we will treat customers with respect and will be polite, patient and honest. The Council is also committed to treat everyone fairly and justly, and to promote equality. This applies to all residents and customers, planning applicants and those people against whom the Council is taking, or proposing to take, planning enforcement action. More details can be found on the Council's website under 'Council and Democracy'.

Agenda Item 4

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Planning Committee 6 April 2016

AUTHOR/S: Planning and New Communities Director

Application Number: S/1969/15/OL

Parish(es): Linton

Proposal: Residential Development of up to 50 Houses and 28

Allotments

Site address: Land South of Horseheath Road

Applicant(s): Ely Diocesan Board of Finance

Recommendation: Refusal

Key material considerations: Housing Land Supply

Principle of Development

Character and Appearance of the Area

Density Housing Mix

Affordable Housing
Developer Contributions
Design Considerations
Trees and Landscaping

Biodiversity

Highway Safety and Sustainable Travel

Flood Risk

Neighbour Amenity Heritage Assets

Committee Site Visit: 5 April 2016

Departure Application: Yes

Presenting Officer: Karen Pell-Coggins, Principal Planning Officer

Application brought to Committee because:

A Local Member is one of the applicants.

Date by which decision due: 2 November 2015

Update to Report

Paragraph 47 - Representation

 Chair Linton Village College Governers – Comments that the County Council assessment in relation to the capacity of Linton Village College (LVC) to take more students is correct. However, this is based upon the designated feeder schools only and the following points should be noted: -

- i) LVC is an Academy and makes it own admissions policy;
- ii) LVC is oversubscribed. The PAN for 2016/17 is 165 students. 180 have been accepted and there is a waiting list of around 40.
- iii) LVC has historically admitted 20% of students from outside the catchment area and mostly in Suffolk.
- iv) LVC has recently expanded its catchment to include some primary schools in Essex. This is because of the expansion of Saffron Walden and that the County High can no longer guarantee places.
- v) LVC is an OFSTED rated Outstanding school- it has been and is oversubscribed. As the Multi Academy Trust expands, there have been three new applications from primary schools, one in Suffolk. This means that there is pressure to give priority for admissions to members of the Trust. Many of these points have not been considered by the County Council and it is considered that the formula for calculating capacity is out of date and should not be given weight.

Paragraph 48 - Representation

- 2. The applicants consider that there are two issues in relation to the requirement for a trench based evaluation required by Cambridgeshire County Council Historic Environment Team prior to the determination of the application. The first is the severely practical in that the crops have to be safeguarded. The second is financial in that evaluations can be very expensive (ten of thousands of pounds) and the owner is a Charity and careful of costs. A condition of Section 106 agreement is requested to address this issue as an alternative.
- 3. The benefits of the development are considered to point towards a consent on land use grounds. Reference is made to the conclusion of Lord Keith's peroration in the British Railways Boards case "the function of the planning authority is to decide whether or not the development is desirable in the public interest....but there is no absolute rule that the existence of difficulties, even if apparently insuperable, must necessarily lead to refusal of planning permission for a desirable development". Our archaeologist's opinion is that there will be abundant space for up to 50 dwellings and Inspectors have determined at appeals at Corhampton and Clerkenwell that a condition is considered appropriate.

Paragraph 74 - Planning Assessment

4. The comments of the Headteachers of the Junior and Infants Schools and the Governers of Linton Village College are noted. Whilst the schools are well attended Cambridgeshire County Council Growth Team has advised that incatchment demand indicates there is sufficient capacity to accommodate new development (although any further future development beyond these sites may see this position reviewed). In effect the schools fill with out-of-catchment pupils, who in future would be accommodated in their local catchment. The Council would have no basis on which to seek education contributions, that would be CIL compliant.

Paragraph 90 - Planning Assessment

5. Whilst the comments of the applicant in relation to the reasons why an archaeological evaluation cannot be carried out at this point in time are acknowledged, the comments of Cambridgeshire County Council Historic Environment Team are clear in that further works needs to be carried out to determine whether the site can accommodate up to 50 dwellings without harm to undesignated heritage assets. I have dealt with an application recently where an archaeological exclusion zone prevented development on a large part of the site following an evaluation. The details of the appeal examples referenced are not known and each application needs to be determined upon its own merits. It is in the public interest to safeguard heritage assets and it therefore this matter has to be seriously considered in the balance of the application and the final recommendation in accordance with paragraph 14 of the NPPF.

Report Author: Karen Pell-Coggins Principal Planning Officer

Telephone Number: 01954 713230



Agenda Item 12

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Planning Committee 6 April 2016.

LEAD OFFICER: Director of Planning and New Communities.

Pre-application and Technical Briefing Protocol

Purpose

1. To support all parties in dealing with increasing numbers and complexity of planning applications.

Recommendations

2. That Members agree the pre-application and technical briefing practice and protocol

Reasons for Recommendations

3. To provide guidance for all parties on how to manage pre-application engagement and increase knowledge of complex technical issues for relevant applications.

Background

- 4. The Planning Committee has an increasing number of complex and major planning applications to consider. This is due to a range of factors including planning applications arising from the lack of a five year land supply and also from applications from allocated strategic sites. This guidance is intended to provide additional advice to all parties in the light of these circumstances.
- 5. In order to assist the Planning Committee and local Members, it has been agreed that briefings will be arranged to allow presentation and exploration of planning proposals at pre-application stage, and also post-submission to consider specific technical aspects as they relate to particular applications.

Pre-application Engagement

- 6. South Cambridgeshire has encouraged planning applicants to seek preapplication advice for over five years, this is provided by planning officers. A number of options are offered within this service and costs are recouped through fees.
- 7. National guidance strongly encourages this practice and in addition for major applications advises applicants to engage with the local community. This practice is established in the District.

8. The benefits of pre-application engagement and involvement of Members in the process has been widely promoted by central government and national guidance

'Early engagement has significant potential to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the planning application system for all parties. Good quality pre-application discussion enables better coordination between public and private resources and improved outcomes for the community.' (NPPF)

And

"The Engagement of local Councillors as leaders and representatives of the community is vital in the delivery of the positive outcomes from the planning process" (LGA: positive engagement a guide for planning councillors)

Technical issues

9. Sometimes applications presented to Committee raise complex technical issues. It has been felt in the past that the time allowed to present the technical elements of some applications at the Committee meeting has not always been sufficient. This in some instances has resulted in applications being deferred for further information. The subsequent delay reduces the level of service to applicants but also impacts on the efficiency of the planning team.

Proposals

10. Members are being asked to agree two practice and procedure protocols. The first relates to the holding of pre-application briefings for all Members, including Planning Committee Members, attended by applicants/developers and also pre-application engagement with the local community. The second relates to Technical briefings for Planning Committee Members and the public, prior to the determination of planning applications where there are complex technical issues requiring clarification before a decision at Planning Committee is made.

Pre-application Practice and Protocol

- 11. The Pre-application Practice and Protocol is included in Appendix A this sets out the local authority's approach to pre-application engagement with Members including planning committee and also the Public.
- 12. It provides the opportunity for developers to present a scheme to local Members and the public at an early stage in the process. Allowing the environment for them to raise any questions and concerns and also positively shape development prior to it being presented as a planning application.

- 13. Planning Committee Members who will ultimately make decisions on planning applications can take part in pre-engagement meetings; the protocol provides advice on what they should and should do during pre-application engagement. This should be read with the LGA guidance "Positive engagement a guide for planning Councillors updated version" (See Appendix C)
- 14. Local Members and Parish Councils can also attend pre-application briefings for Planning Committee and there will be an opportunity for them all to ask the developer questions, following a presentation of the scheme. The meeting will also be a public meeting in accordance with good practice in terms of transparency.
- 15. In addition, we currently encourage developers to liaise with the case officers and the Parish Council to agree how best to engage with the local community. This usually involves attendance and presentations at Parish Council meetings and local exhibition or drop-in, or public forums. We encourage planning officers attendance at these to ensure that everyone has a shared understanding of issues. It is also useful for Planning Committee Members to also attend these meetings and when they wish ask questions of clarification to the developer. Planning Committee Members should not express a view on whether an application would be supported or not prior to the application being considered at committee.

Technical Practice and Protocol

- 16. Planning Committee Members will be provided with an ongoing training programme, which will include technical planning subjects. Local Members are invited to attend training. Parish Council training will also be provided. A separate paper is presented to Planning Committee on this matter.
- 17. However, certain applications may present complex technical issues, which require specific briefings, as there would not be sufficient time to fully explore the depth of the issues at normal Planning Committee meetings.
- 18. In these instances a separate briefing on the issue will be organised prior to Planning Committee. Whilst these meetings are open to the public, the focus will purely be on providing the opportunity for Committee Members to ask any questions of officers following a presentation of the technical issue. Given the nature of the meeting no debate or discussion on the merits of the case should take place. (See Appendix B)

Financial Implications

19. Officer and Member time to attend the meetings, which can be met from within existing budgets.

Legal Implications

20. Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 makes it clear that Councillors can both campaign and represent the views of their constituents without compromising

their ability to take part in the actual decision-making process should they form part of a Planning Committee determining planning applications. As such there are opportunities for Members to get involved at the pre-application stage through the formal planning process.

Appendix A: Pre-application Practice and Protocol

This Protocol aims to ensure an open and transparent process by clearly outlining the arrangements in place and how presentations will be conducted, ensuring there is a consistent approach and setting out actions and behaviours to be adhered to by all parties

Members Responsibilities

Existing responsibilities for Members involved in the planning process may be found in the Council's Constitution. Additionally, Members may refer to other national publications including:

- Member Engagement in Planning Matters (Local Government Association)
- Positive Engagement a guide for Planning Councillors (CLG, PAS, POS, LGA)

Why we have Pre-Application Briefings:

- Improve Members' awareness of forthcoming proposals
- Can result in better quality applications
- Ensure that community views are represented
- Improves decision making.

The Process

Developers will be provided with the opportunity to brief Members before an application is submitted for the following:

- Major applications (1000 m2, 10 or more houses)
- Other applications raising contentious, significant and unusual issues as agreed by the Head of Development Management and Chair of Planning Committee.

Pre-application briefings are not compulsory and developers do not have to agree to one. However, officers will actively encourage them to do so where a pre-application submission has been made.

Briefings

Pre-application briefings will be public meetings, generally lasting 45-60 minutes, and will be attended by Members of Planning Committee, Local Members and Parish representatives as well as two senior Planning Officers (one to chair the meeting) and the Applicant/Agent/ Developer and their associates.

Roles & Responsibilities of Members

The briefing will generally be chaired by the Head of Development Management or other appropriate senior planning officer who will explain the role of Members at the briefing.

The objective is for all Members to learn about the emerging development proposal by asking the developer or case officer questions and identifying any outstanding issues to be dealt with.

Planning Committee Members should not indicate any view in relation to the prospective grant or refusal of any planning application. When the application is considered at planning committee this is the time they need to balance all material considerations before reaching a view on the application.

Non Planning Committee Members (i.e. local members) can express initial views on behalf of local communities.

Notification and Format of meetings

Members of the public can attend the pre-application briefings so they can listen to questions.

The meetings will be held on the same day as planning committee and will be advertised five days in advance with the planning committee agenda.

The meeting will be chaired by the Head of Development Management or an appropriate senior planning officer, who will remind Members of the protocol and roles and responsibilities and introduce the developer and the scheme.

The applicant/agent/developer will present the scheme and explain any constraints which have influenced the design process to date and when appropriate their timelines for bringing forward the application. They may also decide to summarise how they have addressed any concerns raised by the Community to date in their proposal.

Committee Members can then ask the applicant/agent/developer any questions. Local Members and Parish Councils will then be invited to ask questions and raise any concerns or views. The applicant/agent/developer should only answer questions raised.

This order is to draw the distinction between the ability of local Members and Parish Councils to ask questions on behalf of the local community and express views on the scheme. Whereas Planning Committee members questions should be on points of clarification relating to the proposals.

The senior planning officer will conclude the meeting and at this point may also clarify or comment on particular aspects or draw a consensus on important issues which may help the developer on how to proceed.

Notes of the Questions and Answers and views raised will be taken. This will be circulated to all attendees and published on the Councils website. Officers may write separately to the developer following the meetings giving their professional advice on planning policy and the weight that may be given to different matters.

We will actively encourage Developer participation in the Members pre-application

and preferably this should be undertaken in addition to actively public engagement at a similarly early stage.

When and frequency of pre-application Member briefings

The pre- application Briefings can take place at any time prior to planning committee. However there are advantages to these taking place as early in the process as possible to maximise the potential for community engagement and proposals to reflect local views.

In some instances it may be useful to have more than one Member pre-application briefing to inform Members how a scheme has evolved during the pre-application stage and the applicant/agent/developer has responded to public engagement.

Pre-application Engagement at Public Forums

We encourage developers to engage with Parish Councils and where possible arrange to present schemes at an early stage. The operation of this meeting is at the discretion of the Parish Council. It is preferable for the planning officer to attend this meeting in order to take notes of questions and views expressed so this can be put on the pre-application case file. Where a planning officer is not present it would be useful for the Parish Council to make notes and provide them to the planning authority.

In addition for some large and/or complex applications a developer in consultation with the case officer may feel it appropriate to carry out further and wider public consultation prior to an application being submitted. In this instance a public forum could be held.

No decision on proposals will be taken at a public forum, this is the role of the planning committee following submission of an application.

Process:

The senior planning officer in consultation with the Chair of Planning committee will generally make a recommendation to the Developer where pre-applications might benefit from a public forum. These could include:

- Applications which involve more than 10 residential units or over 1,000 sq m of floor space;
- Those applications that involve a departure from the Council's planning policy;
 or
- Applications which have significant local interest and material planning reasons.
- Applications where there will be a recommendation for refusal.

Pre-application briefings are not compulsory and developers do not have to agree to one.

Who can attend?

Public Forum meetings are open to all Members, stakeholders, local businesses and residents.

Format of Public Forum meeting

- The meeting is chaired by the Chair of Planning Committee
- A senior planning officer will remind those attending of the protocol and there should be no debate on the merits of the case. They will introduce the case officer to summarise the application process to date and key planning considerations.
- The applicant/agent/developer is invited to make a presentation of the proposal
- Local residents and organisations have an opportunity to present their views either for or against the proposal.
- The applicant/agent/developer responds to questions from Members the Parish Council, stakeholders, local businesses and residents.
- The senior officer will summarise issues raised
- An attendance record is kept, the discussion is recorded and a note of the meeting is made which is reported to the Planning Committee when any subsequent proposal is submitted for determination. The record will also be put on the Councils website.

Roles and responsibilities of Members

As above Members should adhere to the code of conduct as outlined in the Councils constitution. And may also wish to refer to the relevant LGA guidelines referred to above.

Planning Committee Members can attend public forum meetings and ask questions but should not express a view in relation to the likely acceptability or not of a proposal

Local Members can use the meeting to understand the development, the issues important to local people and to the developers,

At Planning committee when making a decision on an application, Members should clarify when then have attended public forums and confirm they did not express a view at this time in relation to the proposal subject to the application.

Role and responsibilities of others attending

There is an opportunity for members of the public who wish to submit questions to raise at the Public Forum.

In addition, local residents, businesses, stakeholders and Parish Councils can use the meeting to understand the development, the issues important to local people and to the developers, and how the relevant policies are being applied by asking questions; It is important that all those attending the meeting should conduct themselves in a respectful manner. The meeting will be stopped if there are any instances of repeated unacceptable behaviour and/or comments

Advertising/notification of the Public Forum

The Parish chair and local members will be notified of the Public Forum meeting as well as immediate neighbours surrounding the site, there will also be a site notice advertising the meeting. Notification will be undertaken at least 10 days prior to the meeting.

Appendix B: Protocol for Technical Briefings

This Protocol aims to support high quality decision making on relevant applications by providing additional briefings for Members on specific technical matters. It will also increase knowledge of important technical issues for members of the public who attend the briefing, supporting them in contributing to the process at subsequent Planning Committee meetings.

These Briefings are normally required when there are technical issues associated with an application, due to their complexity, where there would not be sufficient time at Planning Committee to explore the detail of the issue alongside other matters and other committee items.

Members Responsibilities

Existing responsibilities for Members involved in the planning process may be found in the Council's Constitution. Additionally, Members may refer to other national publications including:

- Member Engagement in Planning Matters (Local Government Association)
- Positive Engagement a guide for Planning Councillors (CLG, PAS, POS, LGA)

Process

The opportunity to brief Planning Committee Members on specific technical issues before an application is considered at Planning Committee will be provided for applications raising significant technical issues as agreed by the Senior Planning officer and Chair of Planning Committee.

Briefings will consist of a session of up to 60 minutes, and attended by Members of Planning Committee. At least two senior Planning Officers (one to chair the meeting and the Applicant/Agent/ Developer will also attend.

This is a public meeting therefore the following may attend to listen to the Technical Briefing. Local Members and the Parish Council will also be given the opportunity to ask any questions.

- Local members (including members from neighbouring wards if the development affects those)
- Parish Council representative
- Members of the public

Meeting Format

• The meeting will be chaired by the senior planning officer who will confirm the purpose of the meeting and protocol. That is to understand specific technical

- issues raised by the application, which would be best dealt with in advance of the Planning Committee meeting
- The case officer will provide Members with an overview of the facts relating to the technical issue and may defer to an SCDC or County Council colleague with specific technical expertise for further explanation if required
- The applicant/developer will be asked to provide details of the technical aspects of the scheme including any specific mitigation measures proposed.
- Planning Committee Members will be provided the opportunity to ask questions in relation to the technical matter. These will be responded to by the senior planning officer and/or applicant/developer.
- The senior officer will then ask other Members and parish Council whether they wish to ask any questions. These will be responded to by the senior planning officer and/or applicant/developer.
- The senior planning officer will then summarise issues raised and will close the meeting
- A Planning Officer will record the briefing and take a note of all persons
 present, the issues discussed and the follow up actions. This will be placed on
 the file by the officer involved, and a copy will be made available on the
 Council's website.
- The involvement of members will be recorded in any subsequent Committee Report.

Roles and Responsibilities

- Technical briefings are not compulsory and applicants/developers do not have to attend. Should this be the case the case officer only will present the technical facts of the application.
- The Applicant/developers presentation will focus purely on the facts associated with the technical detail of the application and will not include a general presentation of the application
- Planning Committee Members should not enter into any debate on the application or indicate any view in relation to the subsequent grant or refusal of Planning permission at this meeting.
- Planning Committee Members must maintain an impartial listening role.
- Planning Committee Members should restrict themselves to questions of clarification in respect of the technical aspects of the application only and not more general questions on other aspects of the application.
- The briefing will be open to the public, to enable them to gain as much knowledge about the technical elements of the application as the Planning Committee Members.

Other Useful guidance

http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=1e064236-6ba6-4ea5-8e96-db4a07c226f7&groupId=10180

http://www.rtpi.org.uk/media/6312/Good-Practice-Guide-to-Public-Engagement-in-Development-Scheme-High-Res.pdf



Agenda Item 13

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Planning Committee 6th April 2016.

LEAD OFFICER: Director of Planning and New Communities.

Member Training and Development

Purpose

- 1. To consider the proposed Member Training and Development Programme for Planning Committee for 2016-7.
- 2. To seek Members' suggestions for future items and topics for inclusion within the Programme

Recommendations

3. That Planning Committee **Approves** the programme and make suggestions for future topics for Training.

Reasons for Recommendations

4. To ensure that the Programme provides for mandatory training for the Planning Committee, addresses Members' development needs and includes topics which are pertinent to nature and scale of planning proposals to help inform Planning Committee decision making.

Background

- 5. The Council's Constitution requires that all Members and Substitute Members on regulatory committees such as Planning Committee receive training before they are able to serve on that body.
- 6. Traditionally this has comprised a single half day session in late May/early June (following the Annual Council meeting and prior to the first Planning Committee of the municipal year). In the past it has provided an introduction for new members to the Planning Committee and a refresher for serving members. There has also a bi-annual coach tour around the district to look at recent developments with an emphasis on design review and an opportunity to reflect on the outcome of planning policies and decisions made.
- 7. An earlier agenda items sets out the protocol for the proposed pre-application and technical briefings.

Considerations

8. The Council's planning function is both important and different from other functions. It has been recognised that Members must have training in planning matters to help ensure good quality decision making which is less susceptible to

- successful legal challenge. The planning applications decided by Committee (rather than by officers under delegated powers), are generally the most complex and contentious ones that the Council receives.
- 9. Given the number, range and complexity of proposals now facing the Council, and following requests from a number of members who have identified areas where they would welcome further training and discussion, a wider programme is proposed.
- 10. In addition to the half day annual planning training in late May/early June and biannual tour round the District to review recent developments in September, two further half day sessions are proposed. It is suggested that these focus on any important changes in planning policy, guidance and practice as well as reviewing milestone appeal decisions which have a bearing on the decisions that are likely to be made by the Planning Committee.
- 11. A programme of non-mandatory topic based training is also proposed. Mindful of Member's time, it is suggested these will be scheduled at a regular hour slot prior to Planning Committee. Members training will not be public meetings, although Local Members are welcome to attend.
- 12. As covered in the additional Committee Item it is proposed to have pre-application and application specific technical briefings For Members, these will be public meetings. Again these will be scheduled the hour prior to planning committee to make the best use of Members and others time.
- 13. A comprehensive Members training programme and pre-application and application specific Members briefing all follow good practice adopted elsewhere, including the Cambridge Fringes Joint Development Control Committee.
- 14. Later this year, Planning Committee will also be considering a number of applications from the strategic growth sites, for example Cambourne and Northstowe. The promoters of Waterbeach and Bourn are also preparing Development Framework Documents. Appropriate briefings and site visits will be added to the programme.
- 15. An initial draft programme is set out in Appendix 2, and Member's suggestions for further topics would be welcome.
- 16. In parallel, planning training is also planned to support Parish Councils, where appropriate joint training will be arranged.

Options

17. The Member Planning Training and Development could remain in its current form, however that would not respond to identified needs nor the growing demands on the service and Planning Committee, in particular.

Consultations

- 18. The proposed Member Planning Training and Development Programme and technical briefings have been discussed with and are supported by the Chairman and Vice Chairman of Planning Committee, the Planning Portfolio Holder and the Strategic Planning and Transportation Portfolio Holder.
- 19. It is presented as a draft programme for Planning Committee to consider. A draft programme of future technical briefings is also attached for consideration.

Conclusions

- 20. Member feedback is welcomed on the proposed programme for Planning Training and Development Programme.
- 21. The Programme will ensure that the mandatory training for the Planning Committee, as required by the constitution, is delivered. The programme and technical briefings between them aim to addresses Members' development needs and includes topics which are pertinent to nature and scale of planning proposals to help inform Planning Committee decision making.

Implications

22. Financial

The programme and briefings will largely be provided by Officers from South Cambridgeshire District Council or Partner Authorities. As such any costs will be minimal.

Legal

23. The Member Development Training Programme is mandatory to Members of Planning Committee and Substitute Members

Staffing

24. Officers will be given sufficient time to prepare and deliver the programme.

Discussing key topics and sharing knowledge and experience between officers and members will encourage closer working and a stronger service.

Equality and Diversity.

25. The member development programme will be open to all members.

Environmental Implications

26. There are no environmental implications arising from the proposals.

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Proposed Training and Development Programme. Appendix 2 – Proposed Programme of Technical Briefings

Report Author: Jane Green – Head of New Communities

Telephone: (01954) 713164.

Appendix 1 Proposed Draft Member Development Programme (Mandatory)

Date	Meeting	Venue and
		Programme Lead
June	Annual Planning Refresher Training (and Introduction for new members) to cover:	South Cambridgeshire Hall

Date/time tbc	 Role of Planning Committee and Probity. National Planning Policy Framework and Practice guidance The Local Plan Development Management Material Considerations S106 agreements Appeals Monitoring and Enforcement 	Head of Development Management and Head of New Communities and Colleagues
Friday 15 th July 10am – 1pm September	National Planning Policy and Guidance (including any recent changes) and milestone appeal decisions Joint Event with SCDC Parish Councils Tour round the District reviewing recent	South Cambridgeshire Hall John Williamson (Cambridgeshire Spatial Planning Unit and Planning Inspector) Coach Tour
Date/Time tbc	developments.	Head of Development Management and Head of New Communities and Colleagues
Wednesday 23 rd November 1.30-4.30pm	National Planning Policy and Guidance (including any recent changes) and milestone appeal decisions Joint Event with Parish Councils	South Cambridgeshire Hall John Williamson (Cambridgeshire Spatial Planning Unit and Planning Inspector)

Appendix 2 Proposed Draft Programme of Technical Briefings (Non Mandatory)

Date	Торіс
6 th April	Cumulative Impact
20 th April	Pre-application Proposals - Bannold Road Waterbeach (to be

	confirmed) (Public meeting)
11 th May	Drainage
1 st June	Sustainable Development
July- March	Topics to be confirmed

All briefings will held at 9-10am in the Council Chamber before Planning Committee

Suggested Future Topics:

- Northstowe and Cambourne (ahead of considering any applications)
- Viability

